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This document is a ‘live’ document that will record all the questions submitted during the 
open tendering period for the GLA’s “Head 2Work” ESF project, and the responses to 
the submitted questions. Applicants are advised to check it weekly for updates. 
 
Please read the questions and responses prior to submitting a new question. Responses 
will not be provided for questions that are repeated. 
 
This document will be the only document published in relation to the “Head 2Work” ESF 
project and will be updated and published each Friday until the period for Q&A comes to 
an end on 10 July 2019. The Prospectus indicates the deadline for weekly submissions 
of questions as 16:00 on Wednesday each week, and questions submitted by the 
deadline will be responded to in this publication. However, where a question is submitted 
after the deadline but prior to publication the GLA will endeavour to include a response if 
possible, rather than waiting a full week. To confirm the reasoning for this; (i) the 
publication will be available to all applicants at the same time, so no organisation will be 
disadvantaged, and (ii) the questions will be answered at the earliest possible 
publication date in order to assist all applicants and give them the maximum amount of 
time to consider responses. If further clarification is required that prevents the GLA from 
providing a response by the Friday following a Wednesday submission, the GLA 
reserves the right to publish an updated version of this document prior to the next 
publication deadline. The final date for the submission of questions is 10 July 2019. 
 
Individual questions will not be responded to directly but will appear in this published 
document so that all potential applicants receive a response at the same time to ensure 
that no advantage is given to any one bidder. 
 
Questions will be printed in full, although the GLA reserves the right to amend wording to 
improve clarity if necessary, to split questions which include more than one request into 
multiple questions and to remove any information that might identify the organisation 
submitting the question. Questions will include a date on which they were submitted but 
will be published in an anonymized format. 
 
Where questions relate specifically to the “Head 2Work” project, they will be published 
under that project heading below. 
 
Where questions are generic, or can be considered as generic, to the GLA ESF 2014-20 
Co-Financing Programme they will be published under the “Generic Questions” heading 
below.  
 
The GLA reserves the right to publish questions that are asked about the Head 2Work 
project, but which can be considered as generic, under the “Generic Questions” heading 
below. You are strongly advised to read both the generic questions and answers and 
those specifically related to the Head 2Work project before you submit your application. 
 
Generic questions and answers may be republished in the Q&A document for any future 
opportunities funded via the GLA ESF 2014-2020 Co-Financing Programme, although 
the GLA reserves the right to make amendments to responses if circumstances change 
or additional information is made available. 
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Generic Questions 
 
These generic questions are taken from those published during previous GLA ESF grant 
award Q&A periods. 

 
  
Q1. What is the minimum turnover for bidding as a lead delivery partner for 

the tender?  
 

A1. The GLA does not require a minimum turnover from organisations bidding 
as Lead Delivery Partners. The GLA’s Due Diligence process will look at a 
variety of areas, as described in the Prospectus, and they will collectively be 
considered prior to GLA Finance making a recommendation of whether to 
support an application. The GLA Finance recommendation will be risk based 
and may include suggested mitigations if risks are considered high but 
manageable. The GLA Finance recommendation will be considered 
alongside additional information requested within the application, and a 
decision will be made at moderation. Organisations should take a sensible 
approach when considering whether to apply as a Lead Delivery Partner 
and should consider whether they have the financial stability and knowledge 
to manage a project of any particular value and complexity in terms of 
partnership. 
 

 
Q2. To aid with preparing our responses could you possibly provide the 

approximate maximum character counts for each of the response 
boxes in Part C of the application form? 

 

A2. No character limit has been published because the response boxes in Part 
C of the application form have been set up to be size-restricted so that all 
applicants have the same space for their response in the required font (Arial 
10 point). 

 
 
Q3. We are interested in becoming involved in the delivery of this project, 

but we feel we might not be successful if we submit a bid as a Lead 
Partner and we are therefore considering joining a partnership. Can 
you provide any information about the organisations that you know are 
bidding to become Leads? 

 

A3. Unfortunately, the GLA will not know who intends to submit a bid as a Lead 
Delivery Partner until the deadline. However, we have an option for people 
to join our Mailing List on our website, and this asks whether people would 
like to be put on a Partnership Database. 

 
If you would like to access our Mailing List, please fill your details in here. 

 
If you would like to view the Partnership Database, please download it here. 

 
 
 

https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/funding/european-social-fund/gla-co-financing-organisation/gla-co-financing-organisation
https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/funding/european-social-fund/gla-co-financing-organisation/esf-partnership-database


 
Q4. We are currently considering submitting a bid but would prefer to 

engage with the programme as a subcontractor. I am aware that there 
is an ESF Partnership Database but am not sure how to access it. 
Could you confirm this please? 

 
A4. The link to access the Partnership Database is here and can be found in the 

response to Q3 above. The database is updated regularly.  
 
 

Q5. As part of Due Diligence bidders are required to provide financial 
regulations unless legally unable to do so. Our finance department are 
uncomfortable about this as it is an internal document and we feel our 
audited Annual Report and/or Procurement Policy should provide 
sufficient assurance, are there any alternatives to providing our 
financial regulations and will not providing them mean we fail the Due 
Diligence? 

  
A5. In order to aid the Due Diligence process and obtain a clear understanding 

of an organisation’s capacity, processes and risk regarding financial 
exposure, the GLA has requested a number of documents. The Prospectus 
allows a relaxation of the requested documentation provided there is a legal 
reason. In this instance we do not believe that there is a legal reason to 
withhold the documentation. Furthermore, it being an internal document 
gives us greater insight into the procedures and processes related to the 
financial areas of your business. Whilst we appreciate the offer to substitute 
the Financial Regulations documentation with your audited Annual Report 
and/or Procurement Policy, these documents will not provide the breadth of 
information that the Financial Regulations will provide. We therefore confirm 
that we require your Financial Regulations and that if you fail to supply these 
we reserve the right not to assess your application or consider it for an 
award of funding. 

 
Q6. We are considering submitting a bid as part of a consortium. As part of 

the due diligence process we have been requested to submit our 
Financial Regulations.  This document is for internal use only and 
contains potentially sensitive information that could leave us open to 
the risk of fraud if we allow our risk management processes and 
controls to be shared externally.  Please could you confirm if an 
abridged version of our Financial Regulations would be sufficient 
(removing sensitive information)?  

 
A6. Further to the response to Q5 (above), the GLA are prepared to accept a 

‘desensitised’ version of an organisation’s Financial Regulations, but 
applicants should ensure that the documentation provides sufficient 
information for the GLA to carry out their checks, and the GLA reserve the 
right to approach the applicant for additional information if it is required. 
However, the GLA would wish applicants to consider whether there is a 
need to submit a desensitised document, as the GLA would not share the 
document further and it would only be used internally for our review and 
checks. 

https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/funding/european-social-fund/gla-co-financing-organisation/esf-partnership-database


 
Q7. The Payment Trigger Calculator asks how much additional funding 

bidders could absorb to deliver additional outcomes at the same unit 
price – is there an upper limit for funding available? 

 
A7. The question in the Payment Trigger Calculator is not related to current 

budget availability but is intended to verify the value of project that an 
organisation could accommodate if additional budget did become available 
and the GLA wished to invest additional funding into this project. 

 
 
Q8. Please can you confirm whether someone could be on an ESFA ESF 

funded Youth Programme at the same time they are on the GLA ESF 
funded Programme. Will there be the same opportunity to refer 
between Strands? 

 
A8. A participant may be on both an ESFA and GLA ESF programme at the 

same time provided that the projects are delivering different outcomes or 
results. For example, if an activity identified during client assessment could 
be delivered via an ESFA project and would not be reported or claimed from 
both, the participant could access both streams of funding. Applicants 
should note however that care should be taken where the end result for the 
participant is the same on both programmes, as it would not be able to be 
reported to and claimed from both organisations, regardless of whether the 
activity was delivered by more than one organisation or not. 

 
 
Q9. Would a person’s participation in this programme affect their DWP out-

of-work benefits (or similar) in any way? 
 

A9. Individuals in receipt of DWP out-of-work benefits or similar may be eligible 
to participate on the GLA’s ESF 2014-20 Co-Financing Programme. 
However, if they are mandated onto Department for Work and Pensions 
(DWP’s) Programmes, this could result in them being required to exit the 
project prior to completion and prior to results being achieved, therefore 
meaning that the GLA would be unable to make further payments in relation 
to the mandated participant. In addition, Jobcentre Plus (JCP) advisors may 
consider that participation in the GLA ESF-funded project changes a 
participant’s eligibility for their out-of-work benefits (for example, that it 
results in them being unavailable for work) and this could impact on the 
participant’s benefits. However, at their discretion, JCP advisors may be 
able to defer a mandatory JCP Programme entry to allow a client to engage 
with alternative provision. The GLA therefore advises that if participants who 
are in receipt of out-of-work benefits are recruited to the project, successful 
Applicants should liaise with the individual’s JCP advisor to confirm 
deferment and/or the participant’s benefit status at the earliest instance. 

 
 
 
 
 



 
Q10. If we submit an application, can you confirm when we will find out if we 

are successful (or not)? 
 

A10. The Prospectus confirms that, whether successful or not, all applicants will 
be notified at the same time (normally within one week of a decision being 
made by the GLA). 

 
 
Q11. In a previous answer you have indicated that there is no minimum 

turnover for organisations submitting a tender, but that the financial 
tests in the prospectus will be followed.  Are you able to provide more 
detail about what the thresholds are for pass/fail on the measures 
indicated in the prospectus so that we can make an assessment about 
whether we will meet these requirements? 

 
A11. The GLA Due Diligence process looks at a number of indices in order to 

determine whether they feel that there is sufficient risk appetite for us to 
make an investment. As each area reviewed impacts on all others, there are 
no thresholds that are set as either pass or fail. A generally poor score 
throughout could result in a recommendation that we do not invest, as could 
a good score throughout but with one area reviewed scoring particularly 
poorly. 

 
 
Q12. Is there a minimum period of time that someone needs to have been 

out of education, employment or training before they are eligible for 
this programme? 

 
A12. The Specification confirms that participants must be either unemployed or 

inactive on entry to the project. 
 
  



 
Questions relating specifically to the “Head 2Work” project 
 
Q1. Our organisation runs programme cohorts; all beneficiaries in a given 

cohort will complete the same core technical curriculum and be 
supported into jobs into jobs with employment partners (e.g. a tech 
programme cohort would receive a digital skills curriculum and then 
be matched with employers recruiting for tech roles. The same goes 
for a healthcare programme cohort and so on). 

 
Bespoke training plans will provide the beneficiary with an 
individualised plan for developing their soft skills, employability and 
work readiness, alongside the core technical curriculum. Could you 
kindly confirm whether this approach is eligible and meets the 
Bespoke Training Plan requirements? (5 June 2019) 
 

 
A1. If it can be demonstrated that the core skills curriculum meets the needs of 

the participants career aspirations, and the BTP aims to address an 
individuals’ needs that have been identified in their initial assessment, then 
this is eligible. 

 
 
Q2. I don’t think I’ll be able to come to the Market Warming event on 7June. 

Is it possible to circulate an email list with details of all the people who 
signed up to attend the event? (5 June 2019) 

 
A2. The attendees of today’s Market Warming event consented that in order to 

enable further networking and partnership building, the GLA could publish 
their contact name, organisation and email address on the GLA website 
along with the responses to the Q&A session. We will publish these details 
on the ESF Market Warming page along with copies of today’s PowerPoint 
slides early next week, and we will update this response to provide a link 
once this has been actioned. 

 
We are not able to provide details for those who signed up for the event but 
did not attend, as they have not provided consent. 

 
 
We held a Market Warming event on 7 June at City Hall. The presentation from that 
event is here. We have also published the list of attendees and their email address 
here. The questions and answers from that session are below: 

 
 
Q3. In terms of the social action project, can you define what that will look like 

and how to make it more inviting to the young people? (7 June 2019) 
 
A3.  We are not being prescriptive. We envisage that bidders will interpret this concept 

and relay their ideas around social action projects within their bids. 
 
 

https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2019_06_06_esf_head_2work_market_warming_presentation_final_to_publish.pdf
https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/head_2work_market_warming_event_-_7_june_2019_-_attendees_contact_list_-_published.pdf


 
 
Q4. Is the social action project concept similar to the National Citizenship Service 

(NCS) programme? How long should it last? (7 June 2019) 
 
A4.  The NCS programme is aimed at young people up to 18 years of age. Our Head 

2Work project is aimed at 18-24-year olds.  
 

In terms of the length of the social action project, we would expect a project to be 
long enough to offer the opportunity for the participants to enhance or develop 
transferable skills. It is envisaged that the Business Mentors will help the young 
people to shape and deliver their social action projects.  

 
 
Q5. Can we pay expenses to the participants? (7 June 2019) 
 
A5.  You can pay expenses to participants. Expenses will need to be factored into your 

budget. 
 
 
Q6. Are young people with complex needs eligible for this project? (7 June 2019) 
 
A6.  Young people with complex needs can be supported by this project. If your project 

is looking to support young people with complex needs then you will need to make 
sure that all necessary support e.g. mentoring, is costed into your project budget. 

 
 
Q7. We have worked with 18-24-year olds who are homeless. We have found it 

hard to get them into sustainable jobs. The challenge is not just accessing 
jobs, but once they start earning the amount of rent they have to pay at their 
local hostels basically starts to trap them in debt. How could we address this 
in this project? (7 June 2019) 

 
A7. It is envisaged that bidders will have good relationships with employers in order to 

access job opportunities. The challenges faced by young people who are 
homelessness are specific and maybe difficult to address in this project. The GLA 
will be developing projects for homeless people in the next round of funding 
opportunities, which will be set up to address those challenges. 

 
 
Q8. If you are aiming for 2-3 bids, and you get 3 proposals for half of the money 

each, will you look to scale down the projects? (7 June 2019) 
 
A8.  Section 3.2 ‘The Volume of Grants on Offer’ page 12 of the published Specification 

details how we will approach funding 2-3 bids for this project. If necessary, we will 
negotiate the value of bids down. 

 
 
Q9. In the last round the weekly updates uploaded on the portal were very 

confusing and it was not clear which was the best document to refer to. How 
will you ensure this is avoided this time? (7 June 2019) 

 
A9.  The last round was administered through TFL’s Pro-contract. We are not using Pro-

contract for this funding opportunity. We will upload an updated Head 2Work Q&A 
document every Friday up to 12th July. 



Q10. Can you provide more detail on the payment model for this project? (7 June 
2019) 

 
A10.  This funding opportunity is Payment by Results and the model is detailed in Section 

3.3 ‘The Payment Model & Trigger Payments’ page 13 of the published 
Specification.  

 
 
Q11. How long is a sustained outcome? (7 June 2019) 
 
A11.  A sustained outcome is where a participant stays in a job or education/training 

placement for 26 weeks out of 32 weeks. It is still possible to claim a sustained 
outcome where a participant changes jobs within that timeframe as long as this can 
be evidenced. 

 
 
Q12. Can you confirm the total number of outcomes and the budget for this 

project? (7 June 2019) 
 
A12.  The total number of outcomes for this project is at least 200 sustained outcomes 

over three years for the project budget of £744,000. If you bid for half of the budget, 
you should be proposing at least 100 sustained outcomes. 

 
 
Q13. Is there a specific geographical focus for this project? (7 June 2019) 
 
A13.  The geographical focus of the project is London, but please note it is not a Pan-

London project. Delivery should be localised at borough(s) level. Bidders should 
demonstrate there is a need for the project in their identified geographic location, 
as well as having established networks and working partnerships across that 
landscape. There is no restriction on the choice of borough(s). 

 
 
Q14. Would this project be suitable for young people in custody? (7 June 2019) 
 
A14.  Her Majesty’s Prison and Probation Service (HPPS), previously known as the 

National Offender Management Service (NOMS), commissions projects for young 
people in custody.  

 
This concludes the questions and answers from the Market Warming Event. The 
following questions came via the website. 
 
 
Q15. Could you please advise when the attendee list from the market warming 

event is likely to be circulated?  (12 June 2019) 

 
A15. The attendee list from the market warming event is here.  

 
 
Q16. On Page 15 of the Application Form (iv: Other Documentation), it lists the 

required documents that must be enclosed to ensure a complete and 
compliant bid. You have asked for a 'Quality Management System or 
Statement', stating 'this only applies to organisations with 5 employees'. 
Should this read 'only applies to organisations with more than five 
employees'? (12 June 2019) 

https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/head_2work_market_warming_event_-_7_june_2019_-_attendees_contact_list-_published_0.pdf


 
A16. The comment was inserted during the review of the document in order to align the 

with request with that for the Health and Safety question above but was rejected. 
Unfortunately, the inserted comment has not been removed. A Quality 
Management System or Statement should be provided by all applicants. If this is 
omitted on submission, the GLA will write to applicants to request submission within 
a limited window. 

 
 
Q17. On page 18 of the Application Form (Section 1 - Project Methodology) it states 

under the minimum requirements, that 'you may provide Stakeholder 
Declaration Forms to support your answer if relevant'. However, there is no 
such form available to download on the website. The form is also mentioned 
on page 64 (Project Team and Resource Planning), but not listed on the 'Other 
Documentation' list on page 15. Could a template be provided? (12 June 
2019) 

 
A17. The Application Form for this project is a hybrid created to reflect some of the 

changes applied in the recent “The Mayor’s European Social Fund (ESF) 2019-
2023 Programme”. Unfortunately, a change in terminology appears to have been 
missed. For “Stakeholder Declaration Form”, please read “Partnership Declaration 
Form”. Please accept our apologies. 

 
 
Q18. On page 51 of the Application Form (Section 2 - Value for Money), the 5th 

bullet point 'How your staffing adequately reflects the staffing proposed in 
your organogram (including subcontractor staffing) - Could you confirm that 
we can embed a project specific org chart in diagram form into the 2-page 
limit of this question, or is this required as a separate attachment? If so, 
could this also be added to the Other Documentation list on page 15? (12 
June 2019) 

 
A18. As noted above, the Application Form for this project is a hybrid created to reflect 

some of the changes applied in the recent “The Mayor’s European Social Fund 
(ESF) 2019-2023 Programme”. The request for an Organogram to be submitted 
has been removed from the question, but the GLA will still require this document. 
Please submit this as a separate attachment. If this is omitted on submission, the 
GLA will write to applicants to request submission within a limited window. 

 
 
Q19. From page 81 to 94 of the Application Form, there are duplications of 5 

questions (with word counts) and double entries of the References Table and 
Part 3 Forms. Could you confirm these should be removed and/or a new 
Application Form published? (12 June 2019) 

 
A19. We have downloaded this from our website, and we can only see information 

included on 79 pages. However, the document does appear to scroll further 
(although we can see no content). The numbering that you have used seems to 
suggest that the additional pages occur after Table 4 (the table that includes the 
weighting for sections and individual questions). If this is the case, please ignore 
anything that occurs after this table if it is duplicated. If any information that appears 
after this table is not a duplicate, could you submit a scan to the 
ESFProgramme2014-20@london.gov.uk email address, and we will review and 
advise further. 

 

mailto:ESFProgramme2014-20@london.gov.uk


Q20. Please can you clarify what exactly is meant by the following due diligence 
requirement for Head 2Work: 

 
“Budgeted allocation of funding within the project, detailing which activity 
within the recipient’s organisation will be funded, containing line details of 
proposed expenditure (e.g. staffing and costs, stationery and publicity)” 
 
Is this the same as the project budget required under the tab “Cost of 
Delivering the Project” on the Payment Trigger Calculator, or is it something 
else, if so please can you clarify what exactly is required and in what format it 
should be submitted? (19 June 2019) 

 
A20. The eligible budget headings are contained in the ‘Cost Delivery Project’ tab in the 

Payment Trigger Calculator (PTC). If you complete your project budget using the 
headings within the PTC it will satisfy the Financial Due Diligence requirements. 

 
 
Q21. On the application form in Part 2 Certificate of Bona Fide Tender and 

declarations etc. will you accept an electronic signature, or does it have to be 
a wet signature and therefore a scanned application form? (19 June 2019) 

 
A21. We will require an electronic signature rather than a wet signature, and you can 

drop a scanned signature into the document for this purpose. Please do not print 
and sign the document and then present us with a PDF version. A Word version is 
required, and this is confirmed in ‘(iv) Other Documentation’ in the application form. 

 
 
No questions were received regarding the “Head 2Work” project during the week 
commencing 24 June 2018. 
 
Q22. As part of the Financial Due Diligence documentation requested the 

organisations budget for the current year as well as a cashflow forecast has 
been requested.  Please can you confirm that the budget is simply the 
planned overall spend for the current financial year.  The breakdown and 
details of which will be provided within the organisational cashflow forecast 
for the current year. Thank you. 

 
A22. We can confirm that if the organisational cashflow forecast for the current year is 

provided this will satisfy the requirement for the requested current year budget. 
 
Q23. The application form for Head 2Work, Part 2C – References, asks for: 
  

Examples of two projects which demonstrate you have: 

• Delivered 26 weeks sustained results; and 

• Progressed participants into employment; and 

• Delivered social action projects with young people; and 

• Worked with the same target group and geographical area as stated in 
this application. 

  
We read this as each individual example project should evidence all four of 
these criteria. Please can you confirm this is the case, or alternatively if it is 
sufficient that we can evidence these criteria across two or more projects, 
but not necessarily all four from a single one? 

 
  



A23. We will review this further and provide a response as soon as possible during w/c 8 
July 2019. 

 
*Update at 5 July 2019* 

 
The GLA recognise that providing two examples of project that both cover all four 
areas requested to be demonstrated may be difficult for applicants. Therefore, it is 
acceptable for applicants to provide two references that between them cover all (or 
some) of the four elements of the programme, but not necessarily two references 
that both cover all of the elements. Where possible you should try to submit 
references that cover all four areas. Page 9 of the specification states that The GLA 
recognise that organisations may not be equipped to deliver all elements of the 
programme outlined below and therefore encourage Delivery Partners to work in 
partnership with organisations where expertise and experience can be shared to 
deliver the Head 2Work project in geographical area/s where they have significant 
experience. Therefore, it is acceptable for references not to cover all of the 4 
criteria. If they are partnering with an organisation they might want to include one of 
their sub-contractors’ references. 

 
 
Q24. Our organisation would like to bid for this opportunity and wanted to clarify a 

point on the Payment Trigger Calculator. 
 
 If an organisation is bidding for 50% of the total value available (£744,000) 

£372,000 for a programme, can the total number of starts of 200 be reduced 
to 50% of that e.g. 100 starts? (10 July 2019) 

 
A24. The GLA intend to award multiple grants for this project. The maximum bid will be 

50% and the minimum 30%. Therefore, the bids will need to be proportional; we will 
be looking to award to projects in the region of £3,720 per sustained result (this is 
detailed in 3.2 Volume of Grants on Offer in the Service Specification - page 12). 
For example, if you intend to bid for 50% of the total value you will need to deliver a 
minimum of 100 ‘sustained EET outcomes.   

 
 
Q25. Our organization has just noticed this opportunity and are interested in 

delivering this to young disabled people, primarily in West London. We don’t 
have the capacity to deliver as a lead at this late stage, are you aware of any 
potential bidders who are looking for specialist partners who could deliver on 
a partner/sub basis? (10 July 2019) 

 
A25. The GLA will not know who is bidding until the bids are received. We mailed out to 

our mailing list, some of whom may be interested and may be on our partner 
database here. In addition a number of interested organisations attended our 
Market Warming event on 7 June, their contact details can be found here. 

 
 
Q26. Our Legal Team have asked us to request clarification of the following:  
 

Clause 3.12 (page 14) of the draft Grant Agreement asks the applicant to 
confirm that in receiving the Grant, the applicant confirms that it will comply 
with the rules around State Aid. 
 
Could you please confirm whether the substance of this grant itself 
constitutes State Aid under these rules? (10 July 2019) 

https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/funding/european-social-fund/gla-co-financing-organisation/gla-esf-partnership-database
file://///CAIDATA/ESFDELIVERY$/ADocs/P&P/ESF%202014-20%20GLA%20Programme/A.%20Development/P1%20Projects/Team%20London/Head%202Work%20Documents/Market%20Warming%20Event/Head%202Work%20Market%20Warming%20Event%20-%207%20June%202019%20-%20Attendees%20Contact%20List%20-%20Published.pdf


 
A26. We will review this further and provide a response as soon as possible during w/c 

15 July 2019. 
 
 
. 


